Village of Lemont
Planning and Zoning Commission
Special Meeting of June 19, 2019

A special meeting of the Planning and Zoning Corsiais for the Village of Lemont was held at
6:30 p.m. on Wednesday, June 19, 2019 in the setmoroBoard Room of the Village Hall, 418
Main Street, Lemont, lllinois.

CALL TO ORDER

A.

Pledge of Allegiance

Chairman Spinelli called the meeting to order 87¢.m. He then led the Pledge
of Allegiance.

. Verify Quorum

Upon roll call the following were:
Present: Cunningham, McGleam, O’Connor, Zolecgin8&lli
Absent: Glomp and Plahm

Community Development Director Jason Berry, ComsgllPlanner Jamie Tate
and Village Trustee Ron Stapleton were also present

. Approval of Minutes — May 1, 2019

Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byn@issioner Zolecki to
approve the minutes from the May 1, 2019 meetirtg wo changes. A voice
vote was taken:

Ayes: All

Nays: None

Motion passed

CHAIRMAN’'S COMMENTS

Chairman Spinelli welcomed the audience to the mgetHe then asked everyone in
the audience to stand and raise his/her right hatelthen administered the oath.

PUBLIC HEARINGS

A. 19-10 PM MARKET O STATE EMC SIGN

Chairman Spinelli called for a motion to open thbl hearing for Case 19-10.

Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byn@ssioner Cunningham to
open the public hearing for Case 19-10. A voiceweas taken:



Ayes: All
Nays: None
Motion passed

Staff Presentation

Jamie Tate, Consulting Planner, said that EugemgriRowicz from PM Market on
State is requesting an amendment to the approwth&l Unit Development for the
Lemont Plaza. The purpose of the PUD amendmeataiow an electronic message
board sign within the existing pylon sign with elemis that do not meet the UDO
regulations.

The Lemont Plaza was zoned B-3 and granted a $pseidor a Commercial

Planned Development back on August 28, 1995. ®&te'sh Market will be
occupying the space indicated “Certified Grocens'tloe master site plan included in
the Ordinance, but better known as the Chipaircation. The PUD did allow for
freestanding ground mounted monument, pole or pgigns only on the State Street
frontage. It could be up to 25 feet in height &6@ square feet in area, provided that
not more than 3 signs are put on the property.

Mrs. Tate stated the applicant is in the processmdvating the former Chipain’s
space. Pete’s Market is a family owned compartpenarea with other successful
grocery stores in the Chicagoland area. All ofrtb&her stores have the electronic
message board (EMCs) center on a freestandingrsigont of their grocery stores.
They wish to install a similar sign on the existpygon sign in front of their store.

EMCs are allowed on property zoned B-3 adjace@tabe Street and at least 400 feet
from another EMC. The distance from the nearesCEign is at lllinois Bar and

Grill and it's approximately 540 feet away. Thgrsimust also be at least 250 feet
from the nearest residentially zoned property ihatljacent to the same street on
which the EMC is located. The proposed sign da¢sneet this because the closest
residentially zoned property is across the stréas SS. Cyril & Methodius Catholic
Cemetery which is zoned R-1. The sign is aboutd0away so the applicant is
requesting relief from this regulation.

Mrs. Tate said according to the UDO regulationsBEMEC sign shall not be located
above a non-EMC sign. The proposed EMC sign ivib@lind above a non-EMC
sign as the applicant is proposing to move thetiegisignage down and install the
Pete’s info at the top of the monument sign. Tp@ieant is asking for more than
two colors at a time and wants a full color mesdamprd. The proposed square
footage of the sign with the addition of the PeMarket and the EMC is over the
total allowed square footage of the sign in the PUDe sign is being proposed at
228 square feet and the PUD Ordinance allows U iosquare feet. The applicant
is using the existing sign and is not increasirgghight or width of the sign as it
stands today. Staff is asking the applicant tduata and update the landscaping



located around the freestanding sign. She showeteooverhead what the EMC
sign will look like.

Staff is supportive of utilizing the existing sigiith landscaping enhancements and
updates. The community will benefit from a sucédsgrocery store chain locating
in a vacant former grocery store space that has bee-performing for
approximately two years. Staff is recommendingrapal with conditions listed on
pages four and five of staff's report. This wiirclude staff’s report.

Chairman Spinelli asked if the applicant or thdage performed any sight line
analysis. He is concerned with lower the sign aahding additional landscaping it
might block sight lines at the intersection.

Mrs. Tate stated an analysis has not been dondadyican ask for one.

Chairman Spinelli asked if internally illuminateidss are permitted within the code.

Mrs. Tate said this is a pylon sign so it is petaditas part of the PUD. If this was a
new development it would be a monument sign andutd be internally lit.

Commissioner Cunningham asked if it is typicaldocemetery to be R-1 oris it
grandfathered because it is so old.

Mrs. Tate stated it is typical to be residentialbyned or sometimes it will be
institutional.

Mr. Berry, Community Development Director, said tbemprehensive Plan ask that
they rezone cemeteries to Institutional.

Commissioner Zolecki asked for condition numbertgw is that determined.

Mrs. Tate stated in the code under the illuminaseation it does have metrics and
talks about foot candles. There are ways to measith photo light meters.

Commissioner Zolecki agreed that a sight line asialgeeds to be done. He asked
was there a reason why they chose this sign oeenttier sign further south.

Mrs. Tate said it could be because this sign fsont of their business.
Chairman Spinelli asked if there were any furtheesiions for staff from the
Commission. None responded. He then asked tHeapipto come forward to make

a presentation.

Applicant Presentation




Eugene Grzynkowicz stated they did pick this pyd@mn because it is closer to the
store. The other sign is a little too far to thets.

Chairman Spinelli asked if the six foot height las same at the other stores.

Mr. Grzynkowicz said the other signs that they hareea little larger with height and
width.

Chairman Spinelli asked if this was permitted, whoesponsible for complying with
the conditions that will be set upon them.

Mr. Grzynkowicz stated the signs will be controlleglthe corporate office.

Chairman Spinelli asked if there will be anyonéhat store that will be able to change
the sign or shut it down.

Mr. Grzynkowicz said no there will not be. Thersitself can be shut down by a
power source which will be located near the sigalftor a breaker within the store.
The sign display will be controlled by corporate.

Chairman Spinelli asked if any of the Commissiorerd questions for the applicant.
None responded. He then asked if there was angpahe audience that wanted to
speak in regards to this public hearing.

Public Comment

Trustee Stapleton asked what are the hours thatighewill be illuminating.

Mr. Grzynkowicz stated it will on while they aree@pwhich is about 7 a.m. till 10
p.m.

Commissioner O’Connor asked if the sign goes blale&n it is not displaying
anything.

Mr. Grzynkowicz said it can go black or they can an image on it that stays static.

Chairman Spinelli stated he would prefer that athesy are closed the sign goes
black.

Mr. Grzynkowicz said he is fine with that.
Chairman Spinelli asked if there was anyone elsaeraudience that wanted to speak

in regards to this public hearing. None respondéd.then called for a motion to
close the public hearing.



Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byn@ssioner Cunningham to
close the public hearing for Case 19-10. A voiotewvas taken:

Ayes: All

Nays: None

Motion passed

Plan Commission Discussion

Chairman Spinelli said he has voiced his opiniggarding EMC signs. He
understands that it supports businesses. The cotiw he has, which is not
specifically with this applicant’s request but@llthe EMC signs in the Village, is
that the Village has a difficult time enforcing tbenditions that are placed on special
uses that allow the EMC’s. They have some sigasitve never been an issue but
on the other hand they have a business on Statet $tiat has been issue since day
one. He cannot support any EMC sign that comesr&d¢he Commission until they
have some way of enforcing the conditions. Thaoaikl be some type of disconnect
that the Village has authorization to go on-sitd puall the power plug if the

applicant is being noncompliant. He is not sutkig can made as a condition.

Commissioner McGleam asked what obstacles doégillage face in enforcing the
requirements.

Mr. Berry stated they usually send Code Enforcenegive a warning. They
usually comply but this specific business goestrigitk to noncomplying. There is
some concern from the Village Attorney when youa@uetrying to enforce signage
that signage can fall under free speech and thierscane Constitutional protection
for signage.

Chairman Spinelli asked how it is free speechig moncompliance to a special use.
The Village is not dictating what they can put be sign, it is more of how they
display that message. The special use is a gy&vilkat they get from the Village.

Commissioner McGleam said the brightness and dsdoies are a problem with
public safety and this should be a priority. yhare not going to be enforced then
they should not have them. The applicant shoutdbagaying the price for another
business that does not comply and the Village’bilitga to enforce their own
requirements.

Chairman Spinelli asked if there were any furthmnments from the Commission.
None responded. He then called for a motion foomemendation.

Plan Commission Recommendation

Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byn@issioner O’Connor to
recommend to the Mayor and Board of Trustees appaiCase 19-10 — Lemont



Plaza PUD Amendment for PM Market on State witlfif'steecommendations 1
through 7 as listed in staff's report on pagesd 2with additional conditions:

1. The EMC sign must be turned off when the busingsoised.

2. An enforcement plan for nonconformance needs tobsidered and reviewed.
3. Asight line analysis needs to be performed.

A roll call vote was taken:

Ayes: McGleam, O’Connor, Cunningham, Zolecki

Nays: Spinelli

Motion passed

Findings of Fact

Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byn@ssioner Cunningham to
authorize the Chairman to approve the Findingsaat For Case 19-10 as prepared by
staff. A voice vote was taken:

Ayes: All

Nays: None

Motion passed

B. 19-08 COVINGTON KNOLLS UNIT 8 PRELIMINARY PUD/PLAT

Chairman Spinelli called for a motion to open tlubl hearing.

Commissioner O’Connor made a motion, seconded bygr@issioner Cunningham to
open the public hearing for Case 19-08. A voiceweas taken:

Ayes: All

Nays: None

Motion passed

Staff Presentation

Mrs. Tate said John Gallagher of Farmingdale Dmuv@ent Company d/b/a
Gallagher and Henry, owner of the subject propergeeking a Preliminary PUD
and Preliminary Plat of Subdivision to allow thenstruction of 24 detached single-
family homes as Phase 8 of Covington Knolls. Tiigect property was included in
the overall Covington Knolls PUD approval as Ordice 849 on July 25, 1994. At
that time, Phase 8 was zoned B-3 but that wasthwfability to rezone to residential
after a certain time period. After no commercievelopment on the parcel, on
December 10, 2007 it was rezoned to R-4 and anfregry PUD/Plat was approved
for 24 single-family homes. The approval alsoudeld some modifications to the
lots to the north of Phase 8 on the south sidevafifon Street, which were originally
part of Phase 1. They were subsequently apprav&thase 1A.

On March 9, 2009 the Final PUD/Plat was approvedPfiase 8. Due to the housing
market over the past ten years, the final phaséseadevelopment have been stalled
several times. The approval for Phase 8 from 2G@9apsed due to the timing of



approvals. The applicant has submitted an appicad revisit the process to gain
entitlement once again for the 24 single-family lesm There are 2 parking outlots, a
fire access/pathway lot and a public roadway. gdking lots will have 20 parking
stalls in each lot for a total of 40 off-streetlgag spaces, to be primarily used by the
Park District fields across Covington Drive. Sirstaff's report, the applicant has
met with the Park District. The Park District lsaproposal for the applicant to sell
back those two parking lots so the applicant canitufer development, so it can
increase by two more homes. Most likely the paykinll shift to across the street
and be on the actual park site.

Mrs. Tate stated there is a range in model chdioes two-story to ranch homes and
all homes will have a front loaded three car garabee homes will be designed to
meet the appearance standards set forth in thalbR&D which is included in

staff's packet as Attachment 4. The standardsiredpick/masonry on all four sides,
at a minimum to the top of the first story. There ather standards set forth to
encourage design variety among dwellings on theessireet.

The Comprehensive Plan designates this area as@onal Neighborhood District,
which states it is mostly single-family homes. Tineposed development is
consistent with the goals of the Lemont 2030 Coimgnsive Plan. The proposal
does meet the PUD objectives. She then read thrthegobjectives that were
applicable to this PUD which are listed in staféport.

Mrs. Tate said the subdivision will be accessedbffovington Drive and is within
close proximity to 127th Street. Staff has sugest “dead-end” sign or changing
the street name to “Court” in order to not confasgone that Bainbridge connects to
the east. The applicant recently submitted a lzaquis plan and it is currently under
review with the Village’s consultants. Staff hagygested an enhanced buffer with a
decorative fence along 12 Btreet as it was approved in 2007 PUD/Plat ordiean
Street and parkway trees will be planted to me2tiBO’s minimum requirements.

The Village Engineer did not have any commentshersite plan. The only
difference today from the former approval is thn subdivision must provide
stormwater volume control and must gain MWRD apptte configure the existing
detention pond to the east of Phase 8 to includien® control measures at the
bottom of the existing detention basin. Both eegiing and public works have
reviewed the plan and have objections. The Engimg®Ilan review will be finalized
once the MWRD permit is issued. A resident hashied out that could not make it
to the meeting that mentioned drainage issueshbgthave backing up onto Overton
Drive. The Fire Marshall is requesting more infatimn on the cul-de-sac turn
around and for more information regarding the hgtha

Mrs. Tate stated that staff has asked the develbfi@re are parking lots to screen
them well from the adjacent homes, to provide #reing along 127 Street, add the
dead-end sign or add “Court” to the street nante4d and 440 have driveways and
garages that are further to the east if the parkitgyare there, and provide more



information on lighting and maintenance of the fape area. In conclusion, the
proposed subdivision is in line with the previouapproved Phase 8 plan in 2009.
Staff is recommending approval with the conditiisted in staff's report on page 7.
She then read the conditions.

Chairman Spinelli said he is concerned about tleegarkway trees per lot. The
parkway trees need to be spaced 40 feet apart1 AVib foot lot they will only be
able to get 30 feet of spacing. He is not oppegddrequiring two parkway trees,
but it might be restricting species if you arertgyto get something closer than ideal.

Mrs. Tate stated she looked at the plan and itdditale it comes out to that anyways.

Chairman Spinelli said whichever residential loésdime the end lots the north lot
should be garage right and the south lot shoulgldoage left when facing the home.
It appears the flood route out of the cul-de-sdweisveen 452 and 453. If that is
correct then lot 452 should be a garage left aldtistduld be garage right to make
sure that future driveways do not impede the flomde. The parking lots should
have no access easement onto Covington Drive.sk&daf fences are restricted
through flood route easements.

Mr. Berry stated they have to show that the fendlenat impede the flood route and
it is reviewed by the Village Engineer.

Chairman Spinelli asked if there were any furtheesiions from the Commission.
None responded. He then asked for the applicartnte up and make a
presentation.

Applicant Presentation

Al Domanskis, attorney for the applicant, said ikithe exact same plan that was
approved in 2009. All of the homes are similad@sign with what is currently in
Covington Knolls. In 2007, they entered in agreetweth the Park District to have
the two end lots to be parking for the propertyoasrthe street. Gallagher & Henry
also deeded the property west of Covington DrivéhéoPark District for use. There
is currently a gravel parking lot there that hasrbmformally used for when they
have special events there. They have recentlyaritietthe Park District and they
reviewed it. The agreement in 2007, provided @altagher & Henry had met its
cash land obligations even before the donatiohisfgroperty. The Park District
brought this before their board to be reviewede property has never been deeded
to the Park District, so it would not be deededkidaat instead they would just pay in
lieu of giving the land to the Park District.

The Park District had looked at putting parkingossrthe street and has asked
Gallagher & Henry to improve the parking lot. THses change some of the
engineering, but with that they would be askingtfarse lots to be available for



residential. The lots are larger than the otheyilothe subdivision. They will
continue to work with the Park District and willtgaeir approval.

Mr. Domanskis stated they are in agreement witfi st&commendations except
number two which talks about the parking lotsthy agree with the Park District
that they are not parking lots then they will need number two telling them what to
do with the parking lots. In 2007, when the plaasvpresented it wasn't presented as
a cul-de-sac, but rather connected to anothertstBaesed upon the Plan
Commission’s review and resident’s review they wasked not to do that and that is
why they have the emergency lane in the cul-de-3&ey were asked by the Fire
Department to do a large radius at the end of elhele-sac, which they have done.

There was the resident, which Mrs. Tate, pointedbauOverton that has drainage
issues. Both John Gallagher and John Green hanee @t there and reviewed it.
They do have a plan on how to deal with the isde@rt of dealing with the issue is
the improvements that will take place with the suistbn completion. They have
had some inquiries from the townhome associatimey are concerned with the
detention. They have met with the Townhome AssmeidPresident and Engineers
to discuss what will happen. He then asked Mee@rto come up and speak in
regards to those issues.

Jon Green, Civil Engineer from Engineer ResourcsoBmtes, said one of the major
things that have happened since the last timewlseg here was that the MWRD
have revised their stormwater management ordinambere are new additional
stormwater volume metric control requirements Hratrequired for the developers.
What that means for this project, is that they hadeed more stormwater detention
that was previously approved. They have upsizedites of the storm sewers that
will be constructed underground to store more waldrere is a stormsewer run
along 127 Street in the proposed rear lots. There is afsadditional parallel
stormsewer along the rears of the lots on OvertoveD Lastly, there is also the
addition of the volume metric control on each awelrg lot of this project. Each
volume metric control is sized to provide about and a half inch rainfall
stormwater storage. It will be a bio infiltratiorench with a combination of amended
soil and three inch rock or perhaps an aggregedtust in the rears of the lots. This
will help reduce run-off of the project and it walttually hold water and promotes
infiltration into the ground. This is consistentiwthe new and improved
requirements from MWRD.

Mr. Green stated they have received reviews fraarMilage’s Engineer. They have
submitted their proposal to MWRD and are waitingjitfirst review comments.

They started the preliminary process with MWRD dl®xto eight months ago. The
project has gone through a couple of renditions@tes. He feels they are
generally in accordance with what their expectatiare.

Chairman Spinelli asked if he is correct that atéhd of the cul-de-sac there is a
flood route between 452 and 453.



Mr. Green said yes but one clarification on floodtmg is the major detention
storage is across the street on this. They aeel $&r storm sewers for a 100 year
storm. There always need to be an over land flawte. He does concur with his
recommendations.

Chairman Spinelli asked where the bio trenchesheilat.

Mr. Green stated they are in the rear 15 feetldhalproperties but within the
stormsewer trench.

Mr. Domanskis said they are in agreement with agitlie word “Court” to the street
name. They have submitted a landscape plan bet m@weceived comments back
from the Village Arborist. They will work with th¥illage Arborist to resolve any
issues. If the two end lots get developed instddxbing parking, they are acceptable
with them not having driveways onto Covington Drivehey do request to remove
the condition number two because they feel it applicable. The other condition
about reaching an agreement with the Park Distagers that. There are a few
residents that are present this evening and hélisgmo talk with them after the
meeting if needed.

Chairman Spinelli stated in regards to the twosger lot, he just wants to make sure
there is enough space between each tree based vfilllge Arborists
recommendation.

Mr. Domanskis said he agrees to go with the Villageborist recommendations.
Chairman Spinelli asked if staff agreed.

Mrs. Tate stated she does and she will talk wigh\thlage arborist.

Chairman Spinelli asked if they had any objectimnghe driveway restrictions that
he has stated.

Mr. Domanskis said they do not have any objections.

Chairman Spinelli asked if any of the Commissiortexrd any further questions for
the applicant. None responded. He then askéeietwas anyone in the audience
that wanted to speak in regards to this publicihgar

Public Comment

Marge Gierstikas stated she lives in Ember Teraackeshe has the first townhome
that faces the detention pond. She asked whahayeplanning on doing with the
detention pond.

10



Mr. Green said this pond was approved years agdvVBN&RD asked for them to

make sure that the pond meets compliance to th@atistorage volume. They
premeasured the pond and their analysis foundhatithe pond is about 15% short of
the original required volume. They will have tgrade the bottom of it and fix the
overflow a little bit to comply with the originalolume from 1994.

Mrs. Gierstikas stated she was concerned whenesdrd lit was going to go deeper.
She is also getting seepage and was wonderingafdito do with the infrastructure.

Chairman Spinelli asked if the pond is currentlgigaed as a dry basin.
Mr. Green said it is a dry basin and will remaidrg basin.

Chairman Spinelli stated if you are having seepsgiges during storm events then
there could be cracks in the foundation. Therddcba a variety of things going on
at the house that is causing the seepage. Tbmmpletely separate from the
detention basin by the house. He recommended @ogahe HOA.

Tom Janco said he is a member of the HOA. He agie@ommission to defer their
recommendation until their hydrologist was ablexam the plans.

Chairman Spinelli stated this is only for PrelimipaTheir engineering plans will be
reviewed by the Village Engineer and also by MWRIhere will still be time before
they come back for Final Engineering plans.

Mr. Janco said further to the east there is a wéténd he was told that eventually
that will silt up.

Chairman Spinelli said when this property develtdyese will be less silt from it.

Don Tijunelis, 1133 Amber Drive, stated the onetfdeeper refers to the volume that
the detention pond can hold, but does not say amgyytibout the rate of filling up and
leaving. He has seen the pond fill up for a coudjalgs. He asked with more water
coming here will it fill up deeper and not drainfast. He asked if a State of Illinois
employee be stamping approval on the drawing.

Chairman Spinelli said the plans will be stampediigensed engineer that is
licensed to work in the State of lllinois.

Mr. Green stated the pond has an underdrain andatieejust restoring the pond to
the original proposed design. The pond is curyaetteiving the water from this site.
The pond was sized for commercial which was thgimai zoning in the beginning.
Due to the MWRD regulations they will be storing fiirst inch and half of rainfall in
the backyards of each lot in the drywells.

11



Chairman Spinelli asked if there was anyone eldberaudience that wanted to come
up and speak in regards to this public hearingneNesponded. He then called for a
motion to close the public hearing.

Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byniission Zolecki to close
the public hearing for Case 19-08. A voice vots vaken:

Ayes: All

Nays: None

Motion passed

Plan Commission Discussion

Commissioner Zolecki asked what staff's opinion wegarding Condition number
two.

Mrs. Tate said there is no agreement in place.nBwveugh it is looking like parking
lots will not be built there, they still can be Ibdhere.

Chairman Spinelli asked if parking lots are allowethis zoning district.
Mr. Domanskis said it was approved as part of tharked Unit Development.

Chairman Spinelli stated they are trying to figatg how to address this and remove
comment two.

Mr. Domanskis said he feels it can be solved byrtaa condition that they work out
an agreement with the Park District.

Chairman Spinelli asked if there were any furtheestions or comments from the
Commission. None responded. He then called faotion for recommendation.

Plan Commission Recommendation

Commissioner Zolecki made a motion, seconded byr@issioner Cunningham to

recommend to the Mayor and Board of Trustees apahCase 19-08 Covington

Knolls Phase 8 Preliminary PUD/Plat including staffonditions as listed on page 7

of staff's report with the following changes:

1. Strike recommendation number one.

2. Require lots 444 and 446 to be garage left andggaright respectively.

3. Require lots 452 and 453 to be garage left andggaright respectively due to the
overlay of the flood routing.

4. Require lots 439 and 465 to be garage right andggaleft respectively due to the
adjacent entry.

5. Have the landscape plan approved and reviewednjuection with the
landscape architect for the tree placement belhiagtoperties.

A roll call vote was taken:

12



Ayes: Zolecki, Cunningham, O’Connor, McGleam, 8lhin
Nays: None
Motion passed

Findings of Fact

Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byn@issioner O’Connor to
authorize the Chairman to approve the Findingsaat For Case 19-08 as prepared by
staff. A voice vote was taken:

Ayes: All

Nays: None

Motion passed

C. CASE 19-09 - UDO AMENDMENTS
Chairman Spinelli called for a motion to open thbl hearing for Case 19-09.

Commissioner Zolecki made a motion, seconded byr@issioner McGleam to open
the public hearing for Case 19-09. A voice votes vaken:

Ayes: All

Nays: None

Motion passed

Jamie Tate said the first UDO amendment is forfldeplain regulations. The date
needs to be changed so they are in compliance. ad@ounty is adopting new
flood maps, so the date needs to be changed tosAdg2019. While they were
updating this they did look for any other chanded tight need to be done. They
discovered that there is no definition for childe#acilities or for driveways. The
UDO is currently confusing regarding child careilfdes or day care center or day
care homes. They are proposing to break child femikties into two different
definitions of day care home and day care cerifbey are referencing the State
Code so if they ever change it then they are inpdiaimce with it.

Some more updates are adding the R-5A to wheadk& about decks and terraces
and not allowing overhead doors for sheds. Otimallstems are adjustment to the
use table, adding small cell antennae to the tékiag an auto repair scrivener’s
error and lastly boat/RV sales, service, or stosagiener’s error.

Chairman Spinelli stated something they might warbok at is mobile billboards.
Where it is a box truck and the box is gone angjais put in its place. He asked if
there is anything in the code regarding a timetlion storage pods.

Mrs. Tate said she believes there is a time reigulan them.

Chairman Spinelli asked if there were any furtheesiions or comments. None
responded.

13



Public Comment

Chairman Spinelli asked if there was anyone inaihdience that wanted to speak in
regards to this public hearing. None responded.

He then called for a motion to close the publicrirea

Commissioner Cunningham made a motion, secondébhymissioner O’Connor to
close the public hearing for Case 19-09. A voiotewvas taken:

Ayes: All

Nays: None

Motion passed

Plan Commission Discussion

None

Plan Commission Recommendation

Commissioner Zolecki made a motion, seconded byr@issioner Cunningham to
recommend to the Mayor and Board of Trustees apahiCase 19-09 UDO
Amendments as prepared by staff. A voice votetakesn:

Ayes: All

Nays: None

Motion passed

ACTION ITEMS
A. 19-01 FINAL PLAT FOR ROLLING MEADOWS PHASE 4

Mrs. Tate said on April 8, 2019 the Village of Lemv@pproved the preliminary plat
for a single-family attached residential subdivistbat had 16 duplex lots at
southeast corner of 19 Btreet and Rolling Meadows Drive. The applicant i
requesting Final approval of the subdivision foagh4.

On February 6, 2019 the plat that included bothsPI3&A and Phase 4 came before
the Plan Commission for Final approval. It wasrappd as a Preliminary due to the
engineering not being complete and the Village Begi was requesting more
information. Phase 3A and Phase 4 were separai@thwo plats and the Phase 3A
was approved as Final and the Phase 4 was appasveceliminary. She then read
the conditions that were approved for the FinalFbase 3A and Phase 4 at the Plan
Commission meeting.

Mrs. Tate stated the Final Plat is in conformandé the Preliminary Plat for Phase
4. The Village Engineer has reviewed the Platlza®lprovided comments to the

14



applicant. There is only one final comment whiets been updated since the staff
report. That comment is that the applicant shstdde on the plat that the Village is
allowed to record the Plat. Everything else thasw the staff report has been
addressed.

Chairman Spinelli said in regards to the no aceasement that he recommended, the
applicant has come back with a general note. @eeput a box text on lots 1 and 16
that says “refer to general note 4 for lot reswics”. He asked if staff will be okay
with that.

Mrs. Tate stated she knows the box text was piltdre to draw attention to it. When
it came to placing the actual easement on theseltad an issue with putting the
easement on.

Chairman Spinelli said he will be watching this totmake sure they do not have an
access driveway onto Rolling Meadows Drive. Heedskthere were any further
guestions or comments for staff. None responded.

Applicant Presentation

Mr. Jurinek stated that he agreed and would nog¢ llaiveway access onto Rolling
Meadows Drive.

Chairman Spinelli asked if there were any furtheesiions or comments. None
responded.

Public Comment

None
Chairman Spinelli then called for a motion for acmmendation.

Plan Commission Recommendation

Commissioner Cunningham made a motion, second€bhbymissioner McGleam to

recommend to the Mayor and Board of Trustees agpafivCase 19-01Rolling

Meadows Phase 4 Final Plat with one recommendation:

1. The applicant should state on the plat that thiayd is allowed to record the
Plat.

A roll call vote was taken:

Ayes: Cunningham, McGleam, O’Connor, Zolecki, 8lhin

Nays: None

Motion passed

B. 19-11 RIVER STREET RESUBDIVISION

15



Mrs. Tate stated Leo Cattoni of Seaways, Inc.aesawner of the subject property.
He is seeking a subdivision and Final Plat forgheperty at 337-379 River Street.
The purpose of the request is to create two sepéotatin order to sell one of the
properties.

The property is located in the Downtown DistrictPand Historic District. It is
composed of five parcels with 6 pins consistingved office/warehouse buildings,
outdoor storage, and parking. Illinois Marine Togv(IMT) occupies the building
closest to the intersection of River Street anghlsta Street. A portion of the IMT
building does encroach into the River Street rightvay (ROW). Seaways occupies
the building to the west at 337 River Street. @pplicant intends to consolidate the
properties and divide them into 2 lots with theemtions to sell the 379 River Street
building and property.

Mrs. Tate said the proposed lot subdivision withyade more independent parcels
with each lot having their own parking and drivewayl here are site improvements
to 337 River Street proposed. She then read theomements that are listed in
staff's report. There are no improvements propdgethe property at 379 River
Street. While the subject property is not compatiith the Downtown Street
“residential” description and purpose of the UDQOnust meet the setbacks,
applicable building volume regulations, and otleguirements. On the proposed lots
they do meet the side and rear setbacks. Thepdmeet the front yard setback as
the warehouse buildings are on the lot lines amh@ncroaching a portion of River
Street. Although, they don’t meet this requiremémty are not proposing to change
or expand the nonconformity. The western mostingl at 337 was actually reduced
with a loss of the garage and the attached cas.p&@ther applicable requirements is
that they must meet lot coverage, that they cortaitain aspects, and no residential
uses on the first floor.

As far as consistency with the Comprehensive Rialgesn’t necessarily meet the
intentions of this area because it is not addresstt Plan for mixed use. There
may be some “single-use buildings” which appliebath of the office/warehouse
buildings. The demolition of the attached garage @arports along with the
proposed new fence is more sensitive and compatilttethe established character
of the downtown and historic district. The prodagél create more access points
since the lots currently share parking and an acdeage. There is not a traffic
concern since there is not an increase in building, structures or number of
businesses.

Mrs. Tate stated there is no room for foundatianphgs with the buildings being
adjacent to the front property line, staff has ®gjgd planters at the entrances and in
other appropriate locations. A couple of stree¢srshould be explored to be planted
in the southwest corner of the site in front of thedoor storage area. The Village
Engineer has reviewed it and has provided comnterite applicant. The
outstanding comments have been incorporated ietedhditions. The Historic
Preservation Commission (HPC) has reviewed theagimn on May 23, 2019 and

16



they did approve the proposal. The proposal dibefore the Committee of the
Whole (COW) on Monday and they were satisfied g proposed subdivision.

Lastly, it will be an improvement to the site tantdish the framed garage and
carport area attached to the building at 337 R8tezet. It will be an improvement to
the site to remove the chain link fence and repikaagth a new wood fence along
River Street and along the adjacent property’s itlene. The subdivision does not
create any further non-conformity and cleans uptbéiple property PINs and lots
to create a clearer two lot subdivision. Stafbmmends approval with conditions.
She then read through the conditions as listethiifi s report.

Chairman Spinelli asked if any of the Commissiorierd questions for staff. None
responded. He stated he does have a questidmefapplicant.

Applicant Presentation

Chairman Spinelli asked if they are putting thecenn the property line.

John Antonopoulos, attorney for the applicant, siagy will put up the fence closer
to their property.

Chairman Spinelli stated that IMT has parking ie tdid shared driveway. He is
concerned with the placement of the new fenceuwiflltstill permit access to those
parking stalls on the IMT property.

Mr. Antonopoulos said yes it will.

Mr. Cattoni, applicant, stated there is 70 feetMeetn the buildings.

Chairman Spinelli asked if there were any furtheesjions for the applicant. None
responded.

Plan Commission Discussion

Chairman Spinelli asked if any of the Commissiorterd any further comments.
None responded. He then called for a motion foomemendation.

Plan Commission Recommendation

Commissioner O’Connor made a motion, seconded byr@issioner McGleam to
recommend to the Mayor and Board of Trustees appahCase 19-11River Street
Subdivision with staff's conditions 1 through 6lia$ed in staff's report. A roll call
vote was taken:

Ayes: O’Connor, McGleam, Cunningham, Zolecki, &lfin

Nays: None

Motion passed

17



V. GENERAL DISCUSSION

Chairman Spinelli asked if there was any furthegpess on the shed in Smith
Farms.

Mr. Berry stated he and the Village Administrataxvé discussed it and they are
waiting until there is a consensus from the Vill&pard.

VI. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION

Michelle Highland said she is on the Associatiora&bfor Briarcliffe. She has a
question regarding the property at 12266™3#eet. She asked if the subdivision
that was approved in November is for a 3 or 2 siigimily subdivision. The
property was zoned commercial and now rezonedeesal. She also asked where
are they at in the planning stages.

Chairman Spinelli stated that property was zonedlestial for three lots. Those lots
can only access from Rolling Meadows Drive.

Ms. Highland asked if they have submitted FinahBl&or those lots.

Mr. Berry said he thinks that they are still wodkiwith MWRD. It only received
Preliminary approval so they do have to come baclEinal approval.

Mr. Jurinek stated in regards to those lots hedrfeasement so that they will not
remove any of those trees. He chose to have agt@asement just for sewer and
water.

VIl.  ADJOURNMENT
Chairman Spinelli called for a motion to adjoure theeting.
Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byn@issioner Zolecki to
adjourn the meeting. A voice vote was taken:
Ayes: All

Nays: None
Motion passed

Minutes prepared by Peggy Halper

18



19



